

**Table 1- General Plan Designations  
North Costa Mesa Specific Plan**

| GENERAL PLAN DESIGNATION   | TYPICAL USES   | RESIDENTIAL DENSITY   | FLOOR AREA RATIO   | COMPATIBLE ZONING                  |
|----------------------------|--|---|--|------------------------------------|
| Low Density Residential    | Single family detached and attached units, granny units, accessory apartments, family day care   | Less than or equal to 8 units per acre.   | 0.15 high traffic<br>0.25 moderate traffic<br>0.35 low traffic   | R1, POR-LD, I & R                  |
| Medium Density Residential | Single-family attached units, multiple family units, senior congregate care facilities, convalescent hospitals, and group residential homes. Ancillary commercial uses are permitted the planned development zone. | Less than or equal to 12 units per acre   | 0.15 high traffic<br>0.25 moderate traffic<br>0.35 low traffic   | R1, R2-MD, PDR-MD, MU, I&R         |
| High Density Residential   | Multiple family units, senior congregate care facilities, convalescent hospitals and group residential homes. Ancillary commercial uses are permitted in the planned development zones.                            | Less than or equal to 20 units per acre: except the density in the PDR-NCM zone is 25 to 35 units per acre. See also The Lakes for site-specific density. <a href="#">Segerstrom Home Ranch Sub-Area C has a site specific density of up to 62 units per acre.</a>  | 0.15 high traffic<br>0.25 moderate traffic<br>0.35 high traffic  | R2-HD,R3, PDR-HD, PDR-NCM, MU, I&R |
| Commercial Center          | Major shopping, service, and office facilities designated serve city-wide and regional markets.  | Less than or equal to 20 units/acre   | 0.25 high traffic<br>0.35 moderate traffic<br>0.45 low traffic<br>0.75 very low traffic<br><i>Except that Home Ranch has a site-specific FAR</i><br>0.37 for the IKEA portion of the project and 0.64 for the office portion | C1, C2, C1-S, PDC, AP, P, CL       |
| Regional Commercial        | Regional scale uses including major department stores, specialty retail outlets, restaurants, offices, and hotels.   | Less than or equal to 20 units/acre   | 0.652 South Coast Plaza (east of Bear Street)<br>0.89 South Coast Plaza (west of Bear Street)  | PDC                                |
| Urban Center Commercial    | Intensively developed mixed commercial including offices, retail shops, restaurants, and hotels. Residential uses are also permitted pursuant to the North Costa Mesa Specific Plan                                | Less than or equal to 20 units/acre. Exceptions: South Coast Metro Center (Area 6) has a site specific density of 100 units per acre; Sakioka Lot 2 may be up to 28 units/ac for mixed- use development. <a href="#">Segerstrom Home Ranch Sub-Area C has a site specific density of up to 62 units per acre.</a> | South Coast Metro Center (Area 6) has a site- specific FAR of 0.79<br>Sakioka Lot 2 (Area 8) has a maximum site- specific FAR of 1.0.<br><a href="#">Segerstrom Home Ranch Sub-Area C has a site-specific FAR of 0.40.</a>   | PDC,TC                             |
| Cultural Arts Center       | Mixed commercial, residential, office and cultural uses.   | —   | 1.77 See also the South Coast Plaza Town Center discussion regarding the FAR.  | TC                                 |
| Industrial Park            | Wide variety of industrial and compatible office and support commercial uses.  | Less than or equal to 20 units/acre   | 0.20 high traffic<br>0.30 moderate traffic<br>0.40 low traffic   | MP, POI, CL                        |

**Building Heights**

Existing building heights in the plan area vary from single story single family homes to twenty-one story office buildings. Generally, the high-rise office buildings are located in the South Coast Plaza Town Center and South Coast Metro Center areas; the Metro Pointe area has approval for additional buildings that include two fifteen story buildings. The buildings at South Coast Plaza and Crystal Court vary from one to three stories in height.

The General Plan does not establish a general limit on building heights north of the I-405 but rather contains two policies that provide guidelines for determining the appropriate building height. Policy LU-1C.1 permits the construction of buildings over two stories or 30 feet only when it can be shown that the building height will not impact surrounding developments. Policy LU-1C.3 prohibits the construction of buildings that present a hazard to air navigation at John Wayne Airport as determined by the Federal Aviation Agency.<sup>2</sup>

Policy LU-1C.3 is particularly relevant to the plan area, since the portion of the plan area generally east of the Metro Pointe property is within the imaginary horizontal surface of John Wayne Airport. Beyond the horizontal surface for another 4,000 feet is the imaginary conical surface. See Figure 6. These imaginary surfaces are the trigger for requiring special studies and review by the Airport Land Use Commission for Orange County and the FAA. It should be noted that a number of existing buildings in South Coast Plaza Town Center encroach within the imaginary horizontal surface; however, each was determined not to pose a hazard to the airport's operations and were required to install obstruction lighting.

Building heights in North Costa Mesa have created public controversy in the past, especially in the Home Ranch area where high-rise development approvals were overturned by the voters in 1988. Table 2 specifies the maximum building heights for the plan area; these building height standards recognized existing patterns and surrounding land uses. Any new building proposed at 3 stories or more should require a shade and shadow impact analysis in relation to surrounding land uses.

~~It should be noted that Home Ranch has a specific height limitation of five stories and only in the center of the property. Any additional height above five stories (75 feet) would require a General Plan amendment. Exhibit Figure 11b depicts the height limitations for Home Ranch.~~

**Commented [CSB3]:** Delete. GPA will be needed to revise height maximums.

**Commented [CSB4]:** This is actually called a Figure, below. It needs revision to allow five stories across Sub-Area C. Page 38.

Please note that our revisions keep the naming of the project site consistent – Segerstrom Home Ranch Sub-Area C. However, if more desirable, we can change it to The Hive.

<sup>2</sup>See Appendix C for full text of Policies LU-1C.1 and LU-1C.3.

**Table 2- Maximum Building Heights  
North Costa Mesa Specific Plan**

| SUB-AREA  | MAXIMUM BUILDING HEIGHT <sup>1</sup>   | NOTES  |
|---|--|--|
| AREA 1<br>Home Ranch  | Varies   | See <a href="#">Exhibit-Figure 11b</a> .   |
| AREA 2<br>Metro Pointe  | 30 feet-north of South Coast Drive (approx. 2 stories)<br><br>90 feet-south of South Coast Drive (approx. 6 stories)   | Current development agreement allows buildings up to 15 stories.<br><br>Buildings above 173 feet in height will require a determination of no hazard by the FAA.   |
| AREA 3<br>South Coast Plaza and Crystal Court   | 85 feet (approx. 4 stories)  | None   |
| AREA 4<br>SCP Town Center   | 315 feet (approx. 25 stories)  | Buildings above 173 feet in height will require a determination of no hazard by the FAA.   |
| AREA 5<br>The Lakes   | Mid-rise Residential- 90 feet (approx. 6 stories)<br><br>High-rise Residential - 280 feet (approximately 26 stories)<br><br>Commercial-110 feet (approximately 11) | Buildings above 173 feet in height will require a determination of no hazard by the FAA.   |
| AREA 6<br>South Coast Metro   | Varies-See Table 6B.   | Buildings above 173 feet in height will require a determination of no hazard by the FAA.<br>Buildings which encroach into the setback for Anton cannot exceed 30 feet (approx. 2 stories) within the setback area. |
| AREA 7<br>Sakioka Lot 1   | 60 feet (approx. 4 stories)  | Buildings which encroach into the setback for Anton Blvd. and/or Sakioka Dr. cannot exceed 30 feet (approx. 2 stories) within the setback area.  |
| AREA 8<br>Sakioka Lot 2   | North of collector street- 60 feet (approx. 4 stories)<br><br>South of collector street- 180 feet (approx. 12 stories)   | Buildings above 173 feet in height will require a determination of no hazard by the FAA.<br>Buildings which encroach into the setback for Anton cannot exceed 30 feet (approx. 2 stories) within the setback area. |
| 1. All building height measurements reference the height above grade- not mean sea level. |  |  |



### 3.0 SUBAREA ANALYSIS

The plan area is composed of eight unique areas that are analyzed individually as well as in consideration of surrounding land uses.

#### AREA 1 - HOME RANCH

##### Existing Land Uses

A portion of this 93-acre site is in agricultural production. Onsite structures include a single-family residence, barn, related farm buildings, and an office building located on Fairview Road. These are all owned by C.J. Segerstrom family. The single family home and barn are identified in the 2016 General Plan in the Historical and Cultural Resources Element. The Segerstrom family, who continue to maintain the house, constructed the farmhouse in 1915. The barn was constructed in 1928. Several farm related structures are located near the house.

Single family attached and detached homes, an Emulex industrial park, and a large IKEA retail/warehouse facility also now sit on the original Home Ranch site.

##### General Plan and Zoning

The portions of this site owned by the Segerstrom family and IKEA are designated as Commercial Center by the General Plan and is zoned PDC. The General Plan establishes site specific FAR of 0.37 for the 19.27 acre IKEA site and a site specific FAR of 0.64 for remaining 43.6 acres located south of South Coast Drive.

In 2001, GP-00-05 was approved for Home Ranch to allow residential, commercial, office, and industrial uses. The overall allowable square footage was increased to 1,351,698 square feet and trip budget adjusted accordingly. In respect to this specific plan, the Home Ranch area was expanded to include the 30.5 acres located north of South Coast Drive. See following Sub-areas discussion.

In 2003, SP-03-02 was approved that reallocated a 2.074-acre portion of Sub-Area B to Sub-Area A to be used as the IKEA parking lot. This reallocation extinguished the square footage development rights attributable to the 2.074 acres, increasing the IKEA site to 19.27 acres and reducing the IKEA site FAR to 0.37 and the overall allowable square footage to 1,319,813; the overall trip budget remained unchanged.

In 2016, General Plan 2015-2035 was approved adjusting the FAR of Sub-Area B resulting in an increase in the FAR and a maximum development square footage of 1,200,000 SF. Table 4A was modified to reflect this change.

In 2024, General Plan XXXX-XXXX was approved to change the designation of Sub-Area C (also referred to as "HIVE LIVE") to (1) Urban Center Commercial on the southern portion of HIVE LIVE (Parcel 1) and (2) High Density Residential on the remainder of HIVE LIVE (Parcels 2 and 3), and establish site-specific density and intensity standards for the HIVE LIVE property. Non-residential intensity was reduced to reflect that non-residential development may only occur on Parcel 1, with a maximum of 0.40 FAR, while residential density is permitted up to 62 units per acre across the entire HIVE LIVE property.

### Sub-areas

The Segerstrom Home Ranch is divided into four sub-areas. Table 4A provides a statistical summary of the maximum number of dwelling units, floor area ratio, building square footage, and the trip budgets for each sub-area. Figure 11 illustrates the boundaries of the sub-areas.

Updated November 2001; November 2003; September 2016

To facilitate flexibility for Sub-Areas B and C, building square footages and trip budgets may be transferred, provided that the total nonresidential building square footage, floor area ratio, and trip budget for the combined two sub-areas are not exceeded as delineated in Table 4A. Transfers affecting Sub-Areas A and D are not permitted. Future development in Sub-Area B shall be limited to high quality office, office-related uses, and corporate office/headquarters with subsidiary support functions that may include research and design, minor assembly, light manufacturing, and storage. Retail uses in Sub-Area B shall be limited to those that are ancillary to the office development

Shown below are the development parameters for each distinct sub area.

**Table 4A- Segerstrom Home Ranch Sub-Areas**

| Land Use                                     | Acreage            | Floor Area Ratio/<br>Density                 | Maximum Units/<br>Square Footage   | Maximum<br>Stories/Height                                   | A.M.<br>Peak<br>Hour<br>Trips | P.M. Peak<br>Hour Trips |
|--|--------------------|--|--|---|-------------------------------|-------------------------|
| A. IKEA                                      | 19.27              | 0.37 FAR                                     | 308,000 sf   | 2 stories/45 feet   | 43                            | 431                     |
| B. Office and<br>Office-related<br>uses      | 43.57 <sup>2</sup> | 0.64 FAR                                     | 1,200,000 sf   | 2-5 stories/36 -<br>75 feet<br>See Figure 11b               | 1<br>1,860                    | 1<br>1,788              |
| C. Industrial<br>Park/HIVE LIVE <sup>4</sup> | 14.25              | 0.40 FAR <sup>3</sup><br>Up to 62 units/acre | 252,648 <sup>3</sup> 70,128 sf<br>875 multi-family                                 | 1-7 <sup>5</sup> stories/45-85<br>60 feet<br>See Figure 11b | 376 <sup>3</sup>              | 362 <sup>3</sup>        |
| D. Medium<br>Density<br>Residential          | 16.0               | 12 units/acre                                | 136 single-family<br>attached units <sup>1</sup>                                   | 3 stories/ 50 feet  |                               |                         |
|  |                    |  | 56 single-family<br>detached units <sup>1</sup><br><br>Total Maximum:<br>192 units | 2 stories/27 feet   | 102                           | 130                     |
| <b>TOTAL:</b>                                | <b>93.34</b>       | <b>NA</b>                                    | <b>492-1,067 units</b><br><b>1,760,648<sup>3</sup> 78,128<sup>3</sup></b>          |   | <b>2,381</b>                  | <b>2,711</b>            |

**Formatted:** Superscript

**Commented [CSB5]:** Please see FNs.

**Commented [CSB6]:** This figure needs modification consistent with project's proposed height.

**Note:**

- The mix of units is for illustrative purposes only; the precise mix of product types will be determined during master plan review; in no instance shall the 192-unit maximum and/or the morning and evening peak hour trip budget be exceeded.
- The 1,200,000 maximum square footage is calculated based on the full acreage originally in Home Ranch which includes acreage transferred to the State of California for public improvements. This full square footage intensity may be used for development in Sub-Area B.



## North Costa Mesa Specific Plan

3. See partial Assignment and Assumption of Development Agreement recorded on 02/05/2004 as Instrument No. 2004000089554 in official records Orange County. Peak hour trips are related to the maximum non-residential square footage only.
4. The permitted multi-family units reflects the total number of base units permitted across the 14.25-acre property, which is approximately 62 units/acre. However, individual projects within the HIVE LIVE may exceed 62 units/acre up to a maximum of 85 units/acre, provided that the average density across the HIVE LIVE property does not exceed 62 units/acre base density, exclusive of any increase in units/density permitted pursuant to the Density Bonus Law (Government Code Section 65915).
5. The 70,128 square feet of non-residential development is only available to Parcel 1 of HIVE LIVE, which has a General Plan designation of Urban Center Commercial and is zoned Planned Development Commercial (PDC).
6. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in Title 13, Chapter 13-X of the City of Costa Mesa Code of Ordinances, including but not limited Table 13-204: (1) in the case of the unintentional damage and/or whole or partial destruction of any structure located on the HIVE LIVE sub-area existing as of [DA EFFECTIVE DATE], such structure may be repaired, restored and/or replaced to its pre-damage or pre-destruction intensity (floor area ratio), use, setback, lot coverage, height, parking ratio, open space, and landscaping; and (2) any structure located on the HIVE LIVE sub-area may be structurally altered, improved and/or maintained, including alterations, improvements and maintenance that extend the use or life of the such structures, provided however that such alterations, improvements and/or maintenance may not result in the expansion of an existing nonconforming use or physically enlarge the structures."

3.—

Updated September 2016



### Land Use Compatibility/Integration

The combination and/or transfer of trips shall not allow development intensities which result in abrupt changes in scale or intensity within the project or between the project and surrounding land uses.

The Segerstrom farmhouse provides a unique opportunity for preservation of a small piece of the City's agricultural heritage. This two-story home and accompanying barn are familiar sights in the area and stand as a reminder of the farming community that was evident here in the early 1900's. Although the Segerstrom home and barn are designated as Commercial Center on the General Plan Land Use Map, it would be in keeping with Policy HCR-1A.5 of the General Plan to preserve these historical structures.

Preservation of these structures in their current location has been accomplished by land use recorded restrictions which include provisions for the long-term preservation of these buildings as historical resources. The property covered by the recorded restrictions is a 1.5-acre site shown in Exhibit 11a and includes the home, barn, and two related structures. The boundaries of the property may be modified, as approved by the City's Development Services Director, so long as the site continues to include 1.5 acres and all four historic structures. The barn may be relocated within the site. Ownership of the property could remain with the Segerstrom family until such time they wished to transfer the property. At that time, the City, another public agency, or private owner could acquire the site subject to the recorded restrictions for preservation of this valuable community resource.

The retention of the farmhouse results in a site design consideration. Non-residential buildings should be set back from the farmhouse site so as to not visually encroach into this area. Buffering could include walls/fencing, landscaping, and/or parking areas. Consideration should be given to physically linking the adjacent development to the farmhouse site with pedestrian paths.

The development potential (square footage and trip budget) of the 1.5-acre site has been transferred to the portion of the Home Ranch site located south of South Coast Drive and east of the Susan Street.

Mesa Consolidated Water District at one time held a ground lease from the Segerstrom family for a small portion of the property in Sub-Area B and had expressed an interest in acquiring the site. The Water District has since removed all of its facilities from the site, terminated the lease, and abandoned the site. This leaves this site available for development as a part of Sub-Area B.

### Building Heights

~~The General Plan specifically limits building heights to a maximum of five stories (and only in the project's center) for this site. Five~~ ~~Seven~~ stories approximate a 875-foot height limitation. Exhibit 11b indicates the various height limits for Home Ranch. The actual siting of future buildings shall take into account surrounding development in order to minimize visual impacts. The use of low- reflective materials for the building's exteriors will minimize glare impacts. In Building Height Area 1 adjacent to Fairview Road, the City of Costa Mesa shall also require a shade/shadow analysis for any building proposed to exceed 30 feet in height in order to ensure that building's shade or shadow does not extend beyond the project site or public rights-of-way.

Updated September 2016

Commented [CSB7]: GP revision needed.



**Commented [CSB8]:** This image will need revision consistent with revised height standards.





### **Sub-Area C: HIVE LIVE**

#### **1. Residential Open Space**

Any future residential development shall comply with the open space standards of the Costa Mesa Municipal Code, except that the project shall provide an average of 50 feet of private open space for each unit (patio or balcony), not including studio units which are not required to have private open space.

#### **2. Parking**

For any future development of the HIVE LIVE sub-area, projects shall comply with the then-existing parking and design standards of the Costa Mesa Municipal Code, except as otherwise provided in this NCMSP.

a. Parking Stall Width: The standard stall width for residential projects is 8 feet 6 inches shall be provided, except that a width of 9 feet shall be provided when next to a vertical restriction.

b. Vertical Support Recessed: All vertical supports within parking areas shall be recessed a minimum of two (2) feet from the drive aisle.

### **Circulation**

The primary project access/egress points should be aligned with Susan Street and the existing Automobile Club entry to the north. Access to the farmhouse preservation site should be considered from within this area so as to minimize the number of driveways on South Coast Drive.

Freeway access improvements in the immediate area include the widening of the Fairview Road off-ramps, both northbound and southbound, and the construction of the new South Coast Drive off-ramp. Both are completed.

Final Program Environmental Impact Report No. 1048 for Home Ranch included a preliminary analysis of a Susan Street exit from the new South Coast Drive-Fairview Road- Harbor Boulevard collector road included in the I-405/SR-73 confluence project. Prior to approval of this additional exit by CalTrans, additional environmental documentation would be required. The Susan Street exit is not required for the Home Ranch project.

A future bikeway was shown on the Master Plan of Bikeways traversing this site to South Coast Drive from the I-405 bikeway undercrossing. However, in conjunction with GP-00- 05, this bike trail undercrossing and related linkages were deleted from the Master Plan of Bikeways. This deletion was necessitated by the CalTrans/FHWA freeway improvements in the general area.

### **Parks and Recreation**

- 19a. In conjunction with high-rise residential projects, private on-site recreational amenities shall be provided to serve the high-rise residents. These amenities may be located on the ground level, roof top, and/or on a podium.

**Area 1-- Home Ranch**

20. Promote the preservation of the Segerstrom family house and barn in its current location by allowing the development potential of the site to be transferred to the adjacent Commercial Center area.
21. All buildings should be set back from the historical preservation area so as to [not](#) visually encroach into this area. Buffering could include walls/fencing, landscaping, and/or parking areas.
22. Future development plans and environmental analyses for Home Ranch shall include an analysis regarding the future fire station in the North Harbor area; i.e.; location and timing of construction. Joint use with surrounding Central Net cities should also be considered in order to defray the costs of an additional fire station. A study could also reexamine the need/demand for the seventh station.
- 23A. Future development In Sub-Area B shall be limited to high quality office, office-related uses, and corporate office/headquarters with subsidiary support functions that may include research and design, minor assembly, light manufacturing, and storage. Retail uses shall be limited to those that are ancillary to the office development.
- 23B. In Building Height Area 1 adjacent to Fairview Road, the City of Costa Mesa shall require a shade/shadow analysis for any building proposed to exceed 30 feet in height in order to ensure that building's shade or shadow does not extend beyond the project site or public rights-of-way.
- 23C. In conjunction with the review and approval of any master plan for the areas containing the four-story industrial/office park buildings (and parking structures, as appropriate) north of South Coast Drive and west of Susan Street, the three-story townhomes (south of Sunflower Avenue and east of Susan Street), and the five-story office buildings (and parking structures, as appropriate) south of South Coast Drive and west of Fairview Road, the following provisions shall be applied:
1. Provision of sufficient setbacks, [variation, or articulation](#) between buildings and Sunflower Avenue, Susan Street, South Coast Drive, Fairview Road, adjacent to the 1-405, and from other buildings to ensure that buildings do not create a "canyon" effect.
  2. Use of low-reflective materials on buildings and parking structures that do not promote glare.
  3. Provision for architectural design, hardscape features, and landscaping [in](#) open space areas, in surface parking areas, or on parking structures that reflect a consistent design theme.



## HOME RANCH

### **Site: Segerstrom Home Ranch**

*Available Area:* 95 Acres

*Potential Facilities:* As the Segerstrom property lies within the service area of Wimbledon Park, its neighborhood park needs will already be served. The City should accept in-lieu fees from the development of this property, as 2.79 acres is not sufficient acreage to develop any active recreation facilities.

*Improvement Costs:* None

*Acquisition Costs:* 317 units planned x 2.07 person per unit = 656 persons; 656 persons @ 4.26 ac/1,000 = approx. **2.79 acres**.

There are three approaches the City could take to the acreage dedication requirement of this site:

- The City could accept the 2.79 acres and purchase an additional 37 .21 acres to meet the minimum 40-acre requirement for full recreation facilities.
- The City could require the development of a 2.79-acre neighborhood park to serve the new residents.
- As this portion of town is already sufficiently served by neighborhood parks, the City could accept in-lieu fees in replacement for parkland dedication.

*Zoning:* PDI and PDR-MD

*General Plan Land Use Designation:* Medium Density Residential and Industrial Park.

*Location Suitability:* This site would be difficult to include in the planning of a community sports complex as access would be difficult for community members in southern Costa Mesa. These residents have already voiced concern about the lack of accessibility to existing facilities. In addition, the location may tend to attract more people from surrounding communities north of Costa Mesa than from the City itself.

In conjunction with the adoption of GP-00-05, the land use designations for Segerstrom Home Ranch were amended to a combination of Commercial Center, Industrial Park, and Medium Density Residential. The maximum number of residential units anticipated was reduced to 192 units. The conclusion of this master plan stated above remains unchanged.

[In conjunction with the adoption of GP-XXXX-XXXX, the land use designation of Sub-Area C was amended to Urban Center Commercial and site-specific intensities and densities were established.](#)